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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Shareholders of Tipco Asphalt Public Company Limited

I have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Tipco Asphalt Public
Company Limited and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2012, and the related consolidated statements of comprehensive
income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and have also
audited the separate financial statements of Tipco Asphalt Public Company Limited for the
same period.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.
| conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. Those standards
recjuire that | comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management,

as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

A membper firm of Erngt & Young Global Limitea
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| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Tipco Asphalt Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
and of Tipco Asphalt Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2012, their financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial
Reporting Standards.

Emphasis of matter

| draw attention to Note 4 to the financial statements regarding the change in accounting
policy made due to the early adoption of Thai Accounting Standard 12 /ncome Tax and
Note 5 to the financial statements regarding the change in accounting policy for inventories.

My opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Siraporn Quaanunkun

Certified Public Accountant {Thailand) No. 3844

Ernst & Young Office Limited
Bangkok: 11 February 2013

A memier rmai Ernst & Young Global Limited



Tipto Asphalt Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Staternent of financial position

As at 31 December 2012

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Current investments

Trade and other receivables
Short-term loans to related parties
Inveniories

Price hedging contracts
Forward exchange contracts
Other current assets

Tetal current assets

Assets held for sales - Vessel

Non-current assets

Depasits with financial institutions with restrictions

Investments in subsidiaries

Investment in assaciate

Investment properties

Froperty, plant and equipment

Gaoodwif]

Ciher intangible assets - Computer software
Leasehold rghts

Deferved tax assets - net

Ciher non-current assets

Total non-current asseis

Total assets
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Consolidated financial statements

{Unit; Baht)

Separate financlal statements

As at

31 December 2012 31 Degember 2011

As at

As at

1 January 2011

As at

As at

31 December 2012 31 December 2049

As at
1 January 2011

{restatad) (restated) {restated) (restated)
739,567,042 1.001,818,734 299,920,234 44,140,952 430,513,964 20,319,068
- - 52,108,331 - - 1,341,120
5,347,921,360 3,687,503,063 1,874,906,078 5,442.083,490 1,626,387 ,848 2,053,245,003
- - - 40,243,540 25,426,686 5,161,084
7,048,482,865 5,755,843,305 3,489,879,647 6,443,284,016 4,792,644,210 290,151,577
27,359,301 67,791,020 - 27,359,301 67,791,020 -
7,801,110 3,845,478 33,191,002 6,650,434 1,476,921 1,652,256
104,971,269 70,073,650 111,562,705 35,455,728 40,579,176 19,421 975
13,276,132.947 10,586,875,250 5,971,565,997 12,039,197 481 6,984,818,825 2,391,291,183
45,423,683 - - - - -
- 68,038,240 72,572,960 - - -
- - - 3,827,571,247 4,627,139,803 4,576,753,996
60,648,740 41,638,567 26,728,900 18,403,580 18,403,580 18,403,560
199,432,500 204,200,000 273,450,000 101,197,924 101,745,153 68,490,887
4,595,800,707 4,247 666,576 3,962,164,150 490,569,772 505,856,576 623,331,436
146,293,504 146,293,504 146,293,504 - - -
19,972,893 7,735,084 10,489,063 17,981,683 2,466,533 1,908,243
207,872,195 220,175,110 212,589,564 4,102,239 4,330,141 4,558,043
106,845,698 153,176,102 359,150,444 44,776,746 44,828,317 38,173,560
11,331,624 11,948,686 40,822,841 5,380,932 5,251,693 17,857,789
5,348,197,961 5,048,872,949 §,104,301,426 4,509,984,123 5,310,021,796 5,349,477,534
18,669,754,601 15,686,748,199 11,075,867,423 16,549,181,684 12,294,841,621 7,740,768,717

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the financial statements.

| w5
\‘-J“’:‘u i
'\‘::"E!,'

B Y .




Tipco Asphait Public Campany Limited and its subsidiaries

Statement of financlal position {continued)

As at 31 December 2012

Liabtlities and shareholders' equity

Current liabilities

Short-term leans from financial institutions

Trade and other payables

Short-term loans from related parties

Current pertion of liabilities under
finance lease agreements

Current portion of long-term loans

Income tax payable

Cash received from former co-veniurer

Price hedging contracts

Forward exchange contracts

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Nen-current liabilities

Liabilittes under finance lease agréeements -
net of current portieri

Long-term loans - net of current partion

Interest rate swap contracts

Provision for leng-term employes benefils

Total non-current liabllities

Total liabilities

Consolidated financial statements

{Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

Mote Asat As at As at As at As at As at

31 December 2012 31 December 2041 1 January 2011 31 December 2012 31 December 2011 1 January 2011
{restated) (restated) (restated) {restated)

18 B8,236,633,408 3,784,809,127 2,338,748 570 8,158,508,798 2,360,334,137 574,542,431
19 2,202,637 ,490 3,485,908,495 747,225,288 2,212,017,359 2,968,515,785 428,609,118
10 - - - - - £4,300,000
8,595,644 12,230,076 10,645,976 4,618,291 7.132,917 5,384,365
20 596,304,373 480,388,584 440,872,549 322,383,480 303,633,480 203,633,480
69,328,878 24,330,283 36,846,145 38,501,527 18,729,136 18,535,705
73 - - 50,765,211 - - -
37 12,708,499 27,896,342 143,635.479 12,708,499 27,996,342 -
37 502,902 13,763,714 7,112,334 492,279 6,362,769 171,688
26,039,584 85,572,337 207,915,071 16,776,473 49,597 346 21,603,217
11,153,150,778 7.915,995,958 3,883,566,623 10,766,007,706 5,742,298,912 1,346,780,204
13,415,586 12,767 587 14,593,707 9,938,202 6,227,778 5,392,791
20 2,371,819,402 3,073,593,282 3,096,327,506 1,103,408,346 2,164,541,826 2,468,175,306
20 19,445,155 10,082,962 27,112,769 19,445,155 8,218,729 14,510,108
22 68,231,320 85,128,682 58,555,688 56,821,784 52,778,439 47,758,574
2.473,911,463 3,161,572,513 3,195.589,670 1,189,613,487 2,231766,772 2,535,836,776
13.621,062,241 11,077,572,471 7.179,156,293 11,955,621,193 7.974,085,684 3,882,616,98¢

The accompanying notes are an integra! part of the financial statements.




Tipco Asphait Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Statement of financial pesition {continued)

As at 31 December 2012

Shareholders' equity
Share capital
Registered
170,043,729 ordinary shares (31 December 2011;
169,002,429 ordinary shares and 1 Japuary 2011:
152,547 663 ordinary shares) of Baht 10 each
Issued and fully paid
152,548,068 ordinary shares (1 January 2011:
152,547,663 ordinary shares} of Baht 10 each
Premium cn share capital
Non-contraling interests of subsidiary acquired
by the Company at price lower than book value
Change In the Company's interest in subsidiary
which not resulted in loss of control
Capital reserve for share-based payment fransactions
Retained eamings
Appropriated - statutory reserve
Unappropriated
Other companents of shareholders’ equity
Equity attribulable to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests of the subsidiaries
Total shareholders' equity
Total liabilities and shareholders' eguity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial state
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Difectors

{Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financlal statements Separate financial statements
Note As at As at As at As at As at As at
31 December 2012 31 December 2011 anuary 2011 31 December 2612 31 December 2011 % January 2011
(restated) {restated) (restated) (restated)
23

1,700,437 280 1.690.024,290 1.525,476,650 1,700.437,290 1,690,024,290 1,525,476.630
1,625,480,680 1,525,480,680 1,525,476,630 1,525,460,680 1.525,480,680 1.525,478,630
886,112,274 886,112,274 886,091,137 886,112,274 886,112,274 886,091,137
2 5,237,755 6,237,755 6,237,755 - - -
13 12,904,468 12,904,468 - - - -
25 13,140,737 4,644,652 . 13,140,737 4,644 652 -
26 140,503,000 115,503,000 94,203,000 140,503,000 115,603,000 94,203,000
2,024,808,519 1,598,218,783 1,041,660,964 2,032,066,638 1,794,744 386 1,362,538,043
{184,521,435) (135,290,406) (239,758,317} {4.642,938) (5,708,055} {10,157,073)
4,424 685,998 4,013,811,206 3,313,913,169 4,583,560,391 4,320,775,937 3,858,151,737
618,026,362 594,364,522 582,797,961 - - -
5,042,652,360 4,608,1756.728 3,896,711.130 4,593,560,391 4,320,775,937 3.858,151,737
18,669,754,601 15,685,748,199 11,075,867 423 16,549,181,584 12,294,841,621 7.740,768,717

nts.



Tipco Asphalt Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Statement of comprehensive ingome

For the year ended 31 December 2012

Caonsolidated financial statements

{Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

Note am2 2011 2012 2011
{restated) (restated)

Revenues
Sales and service income 37,663,155,183 22,303,811,808 35,898,387,645 6,887,662,659
Other income

Dividend income from subsidiaries 13 - - 204,947,351 236,418,513

Dividend income from associate 14 - - 16,788,105 18,920,803

Income from quﬁidation of subsidiary 13 - - 26,659,535 -
- Gain on exchange 37 667,189,427 26,143,187 517,221,811 -

Compensation received from claims for damages 27 50,308,840 609,091,182 - -

Others 98,310,237 80,762,164 72,772,845 80,534,420
Total revenues 38,378,963,687 23,019,808,342 36,736,758,292 7.223,536,385
Expenses
Cost of sales and services 35,754,713,865 20,720,376,352 34,773,472,639 B,137,321,666
(Gein) loss from price hedging contracts 37 805,913,511 325,980,217 804,611,289 (124,896,287)
Reduce cost of inventory to net realisable value {reversal) 11 1,081,504 {945,855) 560,977 {148.682)

36,561,708,970 24,045,410,714 35,578,644,905 6,012,275,997

Selling expenses 108,782,788 123,898,586l 60,759,321 58,627,401
Administrative expenses 594,138,148 589,158,621 386,061,700 356,961,051
Other expenses

Aliowance for doubtful accounts (reversal) 31,475,421 3,519,871 (7,227,555} 18,280,960

Loss on exchange 37 - - - 48,452,701

Impairment loss of assets held for sales 12 4,800,298 - - -

Impairment loss of investment properties 18 4,767,500 198,035,174 - 05,885,174

Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment 16 20,834,537 1,182,718 - 1,182,718
Total expenses 37,326,507 660 21,962,105,684 36,018,238,371 6,591,666,002
Profit before share of profit from investment in

associate, finance cost and income tax expenses 1,052, 456,027 1,057,702,658 718,518,921 631,670,393
Share of profit from investment in associate 14 35,323,425 33,952,035 - -
Profit before finance cost and income tax expenses 1,087,779,452 1,08%,654,693 718,519,921 631,870,393
Finance cost (282,340,477) (238,334,556) {225,094,917) {133,302,942)
Profit before income tax expenses 805,438,975 853,320,137 493,425,004 498,567 451
Income tax expenses 29 (129,589,957) (294,720,358} (39,518,542) {45,061,108)
Profit for the year 675,849,018 561,599,778 453,806,462 453,506,343

7 NNy

Other comprehensive income:
Exchange differences on translation of

financial statements in foreign currencies (60,204,158) 124,632,783 - -
Change in fair vaiue of interest rate swap contract 1,610,686 7,095,747 1,610,686 7,095,747
Income 1ax effect (544,569) (2,647,729) (544,569) (2,647,728)
Other comprehensive income for the year (59,138,041} 129,080,801 1,066,117 4,448,018
Total comprehensive income for th 816,710,977 690,680,579 454,972,579 457,954,361

e
it offihe financial staterments.

/

The accompanying notes are an int%l qa
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Tipco Asphalt Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Statement of comprehensive income (continued}

For the year ended 31 December 2012

Consolidated financial statements

Note 2012 2011
(restated)
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 642,273,946 577,857,819
Non-controlling interests of the subsidiaries 33,575,072 (16,258,041}
675,849,018 561,599,778
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 593,042,917 682,323,730
Non-conirolling interests of the subsidiaries 23,668,060 8,356,849
616,710,977 550,680,578
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share 32
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 4.21 3.79

(Unit: Baht)
Separate financial statements
2012 2011
(restated}
453,806,462 453,506,343
454,972,579 457,954,361
2.98 2,87

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Tipco Asphalt Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Cash flow statement

For the year ended 31 December 2042

Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit before tax
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to
net cash provided by (paid from) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortisation
Write-off withholding tax
Allowance for doubtiul accounts {reversal)
Reduce cost of inventory to net realisable value {reversal}
Dividend income from subsidiaries
Dividend incoms from associate
Income from liquidation of subsidiary
Unrealised gain on exchange rate
Gain on sales of equipment
Loss from written off of equipment
Impairment loss of assets held for sales
Impairment loss of investment properties
Impairment loss of praperty, plant and equipment
Share of profit from investment in associate
Share-based payment transactions
Provision for long-term employee benefils
Change in fair value of forward exchange condracts
Change in fair value of price hedging contracts
Change in fair value of interest rate swap confract
recognised in profit or loss
Interest expenses
Profit from operating activities before changes in
operating assets and liabilities
(Increase) decrease in operating assets
Trade and other recsivables
Inventories
Other current assets
Other non-current assets
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Trade and cther payables
Other current liabilities
Cash flows from (used in) operating activities
Cash paid for interast expenses
Cash pald for corporate income tax

Net cash used in operating activities

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2012 2011 2012 2011
(restated) (restated)

805,438,975 853,320,137 493,425,004 498,567,451
418,850,240 405,168,063 80,230,131 85,033,049
1,177,404 172,881 - -
31,475,421 3,519,871 (7,227,555) 18,280,960
1,081,594 {945,855) £60,977 (148,682)
- - (204,947,351) {236,418,513)

. - (16,789,105) (18,920,803)

- - (26,659,535) -
(46,388,441} {77.485,243) (22,931,806) (7,969,796)
(2,761,185} (26,364,266} (3,054,992) (14,319,344)

- 10,909,175 - 2,046,817

4,800,298 - - -
4,767,500 198,035,174 - 95,885,174
20,834,537 1,182,718 - 1,182,718
(35,323,425} {33,952,035) - -
§,496,085 4,644,652 6,065,341 3,258,845
10,269,170 10,136,168 8,125,296 8,034,673
(17,216,444} 35,996,904 (11,044,004} 6,366,217
25,143,876 (183,430,156) 25,143,876 (39,794,678)
22,637,827 (9,934,060) 11,664,947 -
250,515,438 212 588 620 204,792,744 130,011,344
1,503,800,870 1,404,552,748 537,353,968 531,085,632

(1,737,761,316)
(1,293,721,153)
{73,572,920)
{93,104,560)

(1,280,789,497}
(78,364,177)

{1,696,432,852)

(2,255,017,803)
8,331,101
3,361,482

2,755,430,264
{124,905.982)

(3.815,246,272)

(1,651,200,783)

(23,104,662)
9,568,118

(621,566,429)
(35,730,661)

(576,801,419)
(4,502,343,951)
(11,749,062)
(17,234,127)

2,474,130,372
24,826,156

(3,053,512,753)
{280,374,184)
(38,476,765)

93,318,978
{214,252 553)
{110,008,915}

(5.599,928,721)
(210,800,565)
(20,239,149}

(2,078,076,391)
{129,382,528)
(63,212,825)

(3,352,363,702)

{230,842,490)

{5,830,966,435)

(2,260,651,744)
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Tipco Asphait Pubiic Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Cash flow statement (continued)

Faor the year ended 31 December 2012

Cash flows from investing activities:
Decrease in restricted bank deposits
Cash receipt from redemption of investment

in amortising debentures
Decrease in amounts due from related parties
Cash paid for investment in subsidiary
Cash receipt from liquidation of subsidiary
Cash receipt from share capitai reduction of subsidiary
Dividend received from subsidiaries
Dividend received from associate
Decrease in shori-term loans to related parties
Acquisition of equipment
Acquisition of computer software
Proceeds from sales of equipment
Net cash from (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Increase in short-term loans from banks
Decrease in short-term loan from related party
Cash paid under finance lease agreements
Cash drawdown from long-term loans
Repayment of long-term ioans
Cash receipt from increase share capital
Dividend paid to shareholders
Dividend paid to non-conirolling interests of subsidiaries
Net cash from financing activities
Exchange differences on translation of

financial statements in foreign currencies
Net increase (decrease)} in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and eash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental cash flows information

Non-cash transactions

Acquistion of assets through finance jease

Accounts payable from purchase of equipment

Settlement of loan fo subsidiary with dividend received {Note 10)

Transfer of short-term loans from banks to a
subsidiary by off-setting with amounts due (Note 10)

Setitement of income from liquidation of subsidiary
with account payable (Note 10)

Trensfer of cash receipt from Aras te investment by

non-controlling interests of the subsidiaries (Note 13)

AN
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial _ta%thnis.
N
F

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2012 2011 2012 2011
(restated) (restated)

56,065,220 56,133,919 - -

- 1,344,120 - 1,341,120

- - - 992,745,570

- - (98,600,000} {49,000,000)

- - 968,450 -

- - 800,000,000 -

- - 204,947,351 236,418,613

16,789,105 18,820,803 16,789,105 18,920,803

- - (15,000,000} (20,265,602}

{725,051,764) {624,843,512) (38,721,697) (74,199,627}
(17,212,991) {1,721,100) (18,688,664) (1,706,389)

6812691 32,932,298 3,329,980 18,425,787

(652,797,739) {517,236,872) 857,624,525 1,122 ,680,175

4,483,042,513

1,520,708,943

5,824,946,986

{,85%,396,745
{94,300,000)

{9,452,612) {9,376,057) {4,950,336) (5,321,987)
700,128,119 799,432,164 - -
{1,244,33%,018) {841,287,735) (1,042,383 480) (203,633,480)
- 25,187 - 25,187
{150,644,272) - (190,644,272) -
{6,220) (33,802,320) - -

3,739,636,312

1,435,700,182

4,586,968,898

1,548,166,465

3,303,437 14,377,680 - -

{262,221,592) 701,898,500 (386,373,012 410,194,896

1,001,818,734 299,920,234 430,513,964 20,310,068

739,597,042 1,001,818,7234 44,140,952 430,513,964

5,811,771 $,309,168 5,927,191 7,776,159

15,079,974 3,317,965 - -

- - - 192,498,653

. . - 2,204,751,527
3 O\ s

5 - : 125,690,385 -

49,918,500



Tipco Asphalt Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Notes to consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2012

2.1

General information

Tipco Asphalt Public Company Limited (‘the Company') is a public company
incorporated and domiciled in Thailand. The major shareholders of the Company are
Supsakorn family and Colas Group, a company incorporated in French Republic. The
Company is principally engaged in the manufacture and distribution of asphalt and
petroleum products and its registered address is 118/1 Rama 6 Road, Samsen-nai
Sub district, Phayathai District, Bangkok.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting
standards enunciated under the Accounting Profession Act B.E. 2547 and their
presentation has been made in compliance with the stipulations of the Notification of
the Department of Business Development dated 28 September 2011, issued under the
Accounting Act B.E. 2543.

The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements
of the Company. The financial statements in English language have been translated

from the Thai language financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where

otherwise disclosed in the accounting policies.




6666 6666 puepey L uojiepiodsuer; suLeiy ‘P¥1 0D Buiddiyg oose .
6666 6666 puepey | uojepiodsue) auiep P11 o0 Buiddiys eysq
66'66 6666 pueliey | uoneuodsuel} sulep P “0D SuLe uswinig
66'66 6666 puejey ] uojjepodsue.) suuep P 0D swne eydy
/666 /666 ‘ puejiey | fousbe pue juswabeuew Buiddiys "I 00 swijuey oadi |
sjonpoud jjeydse Jo uonnqguisip pue
6666 6666 puejeyL alinpemuew pue Auedwos BupioH ‘PI7 "0 uswiniig eyt
s)onpoud
Py 12444 puejiey | Jeydse jo uonnqulsip pue ainjenuepy P17 00 Jeydsy joohey
(zLog Buunp uoiepinby Jo
uoleidwios pue uopnjossi() syonpold
6666 - puejiey | Jeydse jo uolinqLsip pue ainjoemuep ‘P¥1 00 uswinlig 1eing
SolIBIPISONS Jnseuioq
110e cloe
Buipjoysieys uoijelodioaul ssouisng Jo alneN aweu s Auedwon
Jo abejusoia

Jo Anunon

‘ssuelpisqns Buimo|jo) oyl pue Auedwios) 8y} JO SJUSLWSIE]S [BIDUBLI SY] apN|ouUl SJUSWS)L]S [BIDUBUI PaJEpIoSU0D 8y |

UonepIosuoD Jo siseq

(e

[



sionpoud
00001 00001 eUIyO Jeydse jo uolnguisip pue ainjoenuely P 00 (Inyurx) yeydsy oodiy
s1onpoud
00'LS 00'LS BUIUD Jjeydse jo uohnquysip pue sinjoenuey P 0D Jeydsy oadi] Buellusyz
sonpoud
001G 00'LS BUIUD Jeydse jo uonnquisip pue ainjoenuely Py 09 [eusieiy peoy leybuo ] Buejbue
BT (BUOY BUGH) [EUCHEUISIU] 03SE] AQ PSUMO SSUBIPISanS
0000} 00°001 Buoy Buor Auedwos BuipjoH ‘P11 (Buoy Buoy) |euoneulsiu] oose |
sjonpold
00001 00001 elpogque) Jeydse o uoinguisip pue ainjoejnuep 'pr] 09 (elpoquwe)) Jeydsy oodi |
AR ZL'e9 aiodebu|g jueunoq (DOM Ag paumQ) Py 91d AB1sug OgY
(oo
g peumo 9,08 11 pue 'pi 0 uswnyg fey ] Ag paumo
sjonpoud (%28 L1 1102 %cG Tl “Auedwod auyy Aq POUMO %286°LY)
10728 /178 eisfe|e Jeydse jo uolngusIp pue ainjoenuey pyg ups Aueduwion uswnig ueuwiewa)y
('pr1 “oguswnyg ey Aq peumo %zg°1g pue Auedwod sy}
AR AR eiskelep Auedwioo Buipjop Ad paumo %0¢°1 1) {DOM) pug ups uoieiodio) IO UellewS)
S3LEBIPISONS SE3SIaA)
1102 cioe
Buipjoysleys uonelodioou ssausng Jo ainieN aweu s Auedwo)

Jo abejuaniad

10 Anunon



2.3

C)

d)

)

h)

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated as from the date on which the Company
obtains control and continue to be consolidated untit the date when such control
ceases.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared using the same
significant accounting policies as those of the Company.

The assets and liabilities in the financial statements of overseas subsidiary
companies are translated to Baht using the exchange rate prevailing on the end
of reporting period, and revenues and expenses translated 'using monthly
average exchange rates. The resulting differences are shown under the caption
of “Exchange differences on translation of financial statements in foreign

currencies” in the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity.

Material balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries

have been eliminated from the consolidated financial statements.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets of
the subsidiaries that are not held by the Company and are presented separately
in the consolidated profit or loss and within equity in the consolidated statement

of financial position.

The financial statements of Raycol Asphalt Co., Lid. are inciuded in the
consolidated financial statements even though the Company's shareholding is
41.44 percent. This is due to the fact that the Company has control over that
company through its board of directors, and it is therefore regarded as a

subsidiary.

During 2008, the Company acquired all of the non-controlling interests in Tasco
International Ltd. at a price Baht 6.2 million lower than the book value of such
interest. The Company recorded this difference under the caption of “Non-controlling
interests of subsidiary acquired by the Company at price lower than book value" in
shareholders' equity in the statement of financial position.

The separate financial statements, which present investments in subsidiaries and

associate under the cost m

public.

thod, have been prepared solely for the benefit of the




New accounting standards issued during the years not yet effective

The Federation of Accounting Professions issued the following new/revised accounting

standards that are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

Accounting standards:

TAS 12 Income Taxes
TAS 20 (revised 2009) Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance
TAS 21 (revised 2009) The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
Financial Reporting Standard:
TFRS 8 Operating Segments

Accounting Standard Interpretations:
SIC 10  Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to Operating Activities
SIC 21 Income Taxes - Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets

SIC 25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or its Shareholders

The management of the Company and its subsidiaries believes that these accounting
standards will not have any significant impact on the financial statements for the year
when they are initially applied, except for TAS 21 (revised 2009) “The Effects of
Changes in Foreign Exchange Rate”. However, the Company and its subsidiaries have
early adopted TAS 12 “Income Taxes" before the effective date.

TAS 21 (revised 2009) The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

This accounting standard requires an entity to identify its functional currency in
accordance with certain conditions in the standard and to record transactions and
report its financial position and operating results in this functional currency, which may
not be Baht.

At present, the management is still evaluating the impact on the financial statements in
the year when this standard is adopted.




In addition, the Federation of Accounting Professions has issued Notification No.
3072555 - 34/2555, published in the Royal Gazette on 17 January 2013, mandating the
use of accounting treatment guidance and accounting standard interpretations as

follows.

Effective date
Accounting Treatment Guidance for Transfers of Financial Assets 1 January 2013
Accounting Standard Interpretation:
SIC 29 Service Concession Arrangements: 1 January 2014
Disclosures
Financial Reporting Standard Interpretations: ‘
TFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement 1 January 2014

contains a Lease
TFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements 1 January 2014
TFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes 1 January 2014

The management of the Company and its subsidiaries is evaluating the first-year
impact to the financial statements of the accounting treatment guidance and

accounting standard interpretations and has yet to reach a conciusion.

Adoption of new accounting standards during the year and cumulative effect of

changes in accounting policies due to the adoption of new accounting standard

In 2012, the Company and its subsidiaries elected to early adopt Thai Accounting
Standard 12 Income Taxes. This accounting standard is effective for fiscal years beginning
on or after 1 January 2013.

This accounting standard requires an entity to identify temporary differences arising
from discrepancies between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the
accounting records and its tax base in order to recognise the tax effects as deferred

tax assets or liabilities, subject to certain recognition criteria.




However, the Company and its subsidiaries selected to adopt this accounting policy in
the current year and restated the prior year's financial statements, presented for
comparative purposes, as though the Company and its subsidiaries had initiaily
recognised the tax effects as deferred tax assets or liabilities. The change has the
following effect to profit for the year 2012 and 2011:

{Unit : Million Baht)
For the year ended 31 December

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2012 2011 2012 2011
Increase (decrease) in net profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company {48) (201) 1 9
Increase (decrease) in basic eamings per share
(Baht per share) {0.31) (1.32) 0.01 0.06

The cumulative effect of the changes in the accounting policies has been separately

presented in the statements of changes in shareholders' equity.
Change in accounting policy for inventories

During the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries changed its accounting
policy in respect of the method used for calculating the value of its raw material and
finished goods from the first-in, first-out method to the weighted average method in
order to more properly reflect unit costs of such inventories, and such change has

already been approved by the Revenue Department.

In this regard, the Company and its subsidiaries have restated the previous year's
financial statements as though the method used for calculating the value of its raw
material and finished goods had originally been recorded using the weighted average
method. The Company and its subsidiaries are unable to determine the effect of the
accounting change to profit for the year 2012. However, the change has the effect of
increasing the profit of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year 2011 by Baht 44
million (0.29 Baht per share) (Separate financial statements: increasing profit by Baht
19 million or 0.12 Baht per share). The cumulative effect of the change in the
accounting policy has been separately presentied in the statements of changes in

shareholders’ equity.




6.1

6.2

6.3

Significant accounting policies
Revenue recognition
Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods have passed to the buyer. Sales are the invoiced value, excluding value
added tax of goods supplied after deducting discounts and allowances.

Rendering of services

Service revenue is recognised when services have been rendered taking into account
the stage of completion.

Vessel operating income consists of time charters and voyage charters. Income from
time charters is recognised when the right to use a vessel is transferred to a lessee for
an agreed period of time, while income from voyage charters is recognised by
reference to the stage of completion.

Interest income

interest income is recognised on an accrﬁal basis based on the effective interest rate.
Dividends

Dividends are recognised when the right to receive the dividends is established.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, cash at banks, and all highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less and not subject to
withdrawal restrictions.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are stated at the net realisable value. Allowance for
doubtful accounts is provided for the estimated losses that may be incurred in
collection of receivables. The allowance is generally based on collection experience
and analysis of debt aging.

Inventories

Finished goods are valued at the lower of cost determined under the weighted
average cost method and net realisable value. Cost of finished goods includes all
production costs and attributable factory overheads.

Raw materials, paokaging materials, spare parts and factory supplies are valued at the

reallsable value. Raw materials, packaging materials, spare paris and factory supplies

A7/ are charged to production costs whenever consumed.




6.5

6.6

6.7

Assets held for sales - Vesse!

Assets held for sales are assets whose carrying amounts will be recovered through
a sales transaction rather than through continuing use. The assets are measured at
the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, and they are not

depreciated.
Investments

a) Investments in debt securities, both due within one year and expected to be held
to maturity, are recorded at amortised cost. Premiums/discounts on debt
securities are amortised by the effective rate method with the amortised amount
presented as an adjustment to the interest income.

b) Investment in associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
using the equity method.

c) Investments in subsidiaries and associate are accounted for in the separate
financial statements using the cost method less allowance for loss on

impairment.
Investment properties

Investment properties are measured initially af cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and allowance for loss on impairment.

Depreciation of investment properties is calculated by reference to their costs on the
straight-line basis over estimated useful lives of 5 and 20 years. Depreciation of the

land improvement is included in profit or loss. No depreciation is provided on land.

On disposal of investment properties, the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the

period when the asset is derecognised.




6.8

6.9

6.10

Property, plant and equipment/Depreciation

Land is stated at cost. Building and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and less allowance for loss on impairment: of assets.

Depreciation of plant and equipment is calculated by reference to their costs less

residual value on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Land improvement 20 years
Buildings and complements 20 to 47 years
Building improvements ‘ 20 to 30 years
Machinery, tools and equipment 510 20 years
Furniture and office equipment 3to5 years
Vehicles 51010 years
Vessels 10 to 30 years

Depreciation is included in profit or loss.

No depreciation is provided on land, construction in progress and equipment under

installation.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on disposal of an asset is included in profit or loss when the asset is

derecognised.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are
capitalised as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Intangible assets - computer software

Computer software is measured at cost. Following initial recognition, computer
software is carried af cost less any accumulated amortisation and allowance for

impairment loss (if any}.

Computer software with finite life is amortised on a straight line basis over the
economic useful life of 5 years and tested for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the software may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method of such software are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

The amortisation expense is charged to profit or loss.

Zj\ /N'j("'”“" 10



6.11

6.12

6.13

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recorded at cost, which equals to the excess of cost of business
combination over the fair value of the net assets acquired. If the fair value of the net
assets acquired exceeds the cost of business combination, the excess is immediately

recognised as gain in profit or loss.

Goodwill is carried at cost less allowance for impairment loss (if any). Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is
allocated to each of the Company’s group of cash-generating unit that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. The Company estimates the
recoverable amount of each group of cash-generating unit to which the goodwill
relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss and will not be

reversed in future periods.
Leasehold rights

Leasehold rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and less allowance
for impairment loss of leasehold rights (if any). Amortisation is calculated by reference

té cost on a straight-line basis over the lease period.
The amortisation is included in profit or foss.
Related party transactions

Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, or are controlled
by, the Company and its subsidiaries, whether directly or indirectly, or which are

under common control with the Company and its subsidiaries.

They also include associated companies and individuals which directly or indirectly
own a voting interest in the Company and its subsidiaries that gives them significant
influence over the Company and its subsidiaries, key management personnei,
directors and officers with autherity in the planning and direction of operations of the

Company and its subsidiaries.

11



6.14

6.15

6.16

Long-term leases

Leases of equipment which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lower
of the fair value of the leased assets and the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The outstanding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
long-term payables, while the interest element is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period. The assets acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the shorter
of the useful iife of the asset and the lease period, if the Company and its subsidiaries
expect not to purchase such assets at the end of the lease period.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight

line basis over the lease term.
Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling
at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the

reporting period.
Gains and losses on exchange are included in profit or loss.
Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company and its subsidiaries perform
impairment reviews in respect of the property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and other intangible assets whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that an asset may be impaired. The Company and its subsidiaries also carry
out annual impairment reviews in respect of goodwill An impairment loss is
recognised when the recoverable amount of an asset, which is the higher of the
asset's fair value less costs fo sell and its value in use, is less than the carrying

amount.
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

In the assessment of asset impairment if there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased, such

reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

12



6.17

6.18

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund are recognised

as expenses when incurred.
Post-employment benefits and other long-term employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Company, its subsidiaries, and its employees have jointly established a provident
fund. The fund is monthly contributed by employees and by the Company and its
subsidiaries. The fund's assets are held in a separate trust fund and contributions of

the Company and its subsidiaries are recognised as expenses when incurred.,

Defined benefit plans and other long-term employee benefits

The Company and its local subsidiaries have obligations in respect of the severance
payments they must make to employees upon retirement under [abor law and other
empioyee benefit plans. The Company and the local subsidiaries treat these
severance payment obligations as a defined benefit plan. In addition, the Company
and its local subsidiaries provide other long-term employee benefit plan, namely iong

service awards.

The obligation under the defined benefit plans and other long-term employee benefit
plans is determined by a professionally qualified independent actuary based on

actuarial techniques, using the projected unit credit method.

For the first-time adoption of TAS 19 Employee Benefits in 2011, the Company and
its local subsidiaries elected to recognise the transitional liability, which exceeds the
liability that would have been recognised at the same date under the previous
accounting policy, through an adjustment to the beginning balance of retained

earnings in 2011.
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Company and its subsidiaries recognise the share-based payment transactions at
the date on which the options are granted, based on the fair value of the share
options. They are recorded as expenses over the expected life of the share options,

and a capital reserve for share-based payment transactions is presented in

shareholders’ equity.

13



6.19

6.20

6.21

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company and its subsidiaries have a present
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable

estimate can be made of-the amount of the obligation.

Income Tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of corporate income tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

Current tax

Current income tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to
the taxation authorities, based on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax

legislation.
Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period,
using the tax rates enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The Company and its subsidiaries recognise deferred tax liabilities for all taxable
temporary differences while they recognise deferred tax assets for all deductible
temporary differences and tax losses carried forward to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which such deductible temporary

differences and tax losses carried forward can be utilised.

At each reporting date, the Company and its subsidiaries review and reduce the
carrying amount of deferred tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to

be utilised.

The Company and its subsidiaries record deferred tax directly to shareholders' equity

if the tax relates to items those are recorded directly to shareholders' equity.
Derivatives
Forward exchange contracts

Forward exchange contracts are presented in the financial statements at fair value.

Unrealised gain or loss from the forward.gontracts is recorded in profit or loss.

..
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Price hedging contracts

Forward price hedging contracts and option contracts with banks are presented in the
financial statements at fair value. Unrealised gain or loss from the price hedging
contracts is recorded in profit or loss.

interest rate swap contracts

Interest rate swap contracts are the contracts under which the counter-parties agreed
to exchange the amounts of interest, which are determined based on the pre-
determined notional amount and the interest rates over the periods specified in the
contracts. The Company and its subsidiaries recognised, on an accrual basis, the net
amount of interest to be received or paid for each period under the interest rate swap
contracts as income/expense in profit or loss. The interest rate swap contracts are
" presented in the financial statements at fair value. Unrealised gain or loss on interest
rate swap contract of the Company and its subsidiaries deferred in shareholders’
equity of the Company and its subsidiaries until realised or recorded in profit or loss.

7. Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with financial reporting standards
accounting principles at times requires management to make subjective judgments
and estimates regarding matters that are inherently uncertain. These judgments and
estimates affect reported amounts and disclosures, and actual results could differ from

these estimates. Significant judgments and estimates are as follows:
Recognition and derecognition of assets and liabilities

In considering whether to' recognise or fo derecognise assets or liabilities, the
management is required to make judgment on whether significant risk and rewards of
those assets or liabilities have been transferred, based on their best knowledge of the

current events and arrangements.

Leases

~ In determining whether a lease is fo be classified as an operating lease or finance
lease, the management is required to use judgment regarding whether significant risk
and rewards of ownership of the leased asset has been transferred, taking into

consideration terms and conditions of the arrangement.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

\ In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts, the management needs to make




Net realisable value of inventories

The management uses judgment to estimate the net realisable value of inventories
taking into consideration the fluctuation of price or cost directly relating to events
occurring after the halance sheet date.

Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of financial instruments that are not actively traded and
for which quoted market prices are not readily available, the management exercises
judgment, using a variety of valuation techniques and models. The input to these
models is taken from observable markets and includes consideration of liquidity,

correlation and longer-term volatility of financial instruments.
Impairment of investments

The Company and its subsidiaries freats investments as impaired when the
management judges that there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value below their cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The
determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgment of the
management,

Investment properties

The investment properties are measured at cost less allowance for impairment loss.
The carrying value of the assets is determined based on fair value appraised by an
independent valuer. Such valuation is based on certain assumptions and estimates.

Property plant and equipment/Depreciation

In determining depreciation of plant and equipment, the management is required to
make estimates of the useful lives and residual values of the plant and equipment of
the Company and subsidiaries and to review estimate useful lives and residual values
when there are changes.

In addition, the management is required to review property, plant and equipment for
impairment on a periodical basis and record impairment losses in the period when it is
determined that their recoverable amount is lower than the carrying cost. This requires

judgments regarding forecast of future revenues and expenses relating to the assets

subject to the review.

Goodwill

The initial recognition and measurement of goodwil, and subsequent impairment
=4 testing, require management to make estimates of cash flows to be generated by the
, 1 asset and to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of

-; those cash flows.

@ (Nr .



Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused
tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences and losses differences can be utilised. Significant
management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that

can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of estimate future taxable

profits.

Post-employment benefits under defined benefit plans and other long-term

employee benefits

The obligation under the defined benefit plan and other long-term employee benefit
plans is determined based on actuarial techniques. Such determination is made based
oh various assumptions, including discount rate, future salary increase rate, mortality

rate and staff turnover rate.
Cost of share-based payment transactions

Estimating the cost of share-based payment transactions requires the determination of
the fair value of the options granted under the transactions which involves appropriate
assumptions, including but not limited to the expected life of the share options, share

price volatility and dividend yield.
Cash and cash equivalents

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
, 2012 2011 2012 2011
Cash ' 4,414 4,493 3,120 3,057
Bank deposits 735,183 488,326 41,021 87,457
Bill of exchange - 509,000 - 340,000
Total 739,597 1,001,819 44,141 430,514

As at 31 December 2012, bank deposits in saving accounts, fixed deposits and bill of
exchange carried interests between 0.20 and 2.40 percent per annum (2011: between

0.15 and 3.25 percent per annum).
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Trade and other receivables

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements  Separate financial statements

2012 2011 2012 2011
Trade receivables - related parties {Note 10)
Aged on the basis of due dates
Not yet due 453,024 823,477 1,138,533 460,799
Past due
Up to 3 months 448,143 43,035 1,019,038 57,683
3 - 8 months - - 83,755 -
6 - 9 months 176 - - -
Total trade recsivables - related parties 901,343 866,512 2,242 326 518,382
Trade receivables - unrelated parties
Aged on the basis of due dates
Not yet due 3,621,307 2,170,662 2,646,853 811,422
Past due
Up to 3 months 731,283 357,905 460,384 104,768
3 - 6 months 51,350 101,383 14,881 53,862
6 - 9 months 22,591 25,954 2,537 17,688
9 - 12 months ' 70,262 15,590 5514 8,281
Over 12 months 114,826 127,810 82,791 104,289
Total 4,511,629 2,799,304 3,222,960 1,100,310
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts {132,390) (101,107) (81,025) (88,252)
Total trade receivables - unrelated parties, net 4,379,239 2,698,197 3,141,935 1,012,058
Total trade receivables - net 5,280,582 3,564,709 5,384,261 1.536,440
Other receivables
Amounts due from related parties (Note 10) 7,809 8,698 16,497 24,600
Accounts receivable from price
hedging contracts 39,410 78,837 39,410 69,454
Other receivables 20,120 35,259 1,895 1,894
Total other receivables 67,339 ' 122,794 57,802 95,948
5,347,921 3,687,503 5,442,063 1,626,388

Trade and other receivables -

Qf
|
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10.

Related party transactions

During the years, the Company and its subsidiaries had significant business
transactions with related parties. Such transactions, which are summarised below,

arose in the ordinary course of business and were concluded on commercial terms

and bases agreed upon between the Company and its subsidiaries and those related

parties.

Transactions with subsidiaries

(eliminated from the consolidated financial
statements)

Sales and service income

Margin on sales of raw materials

Rental and service income

Technical assistance fee income

Interest income

Dividend income

Purchases of goods

Rental and service expenses
Transactions with associate
Dividend income

Transactions with related companies

Sales and service income
Rental and service income
Rental and service expenses

Technical assistance fee expenses

Consolidated

financial statements

Separate

financial statements

{Unit: Million Baht)

Transfer Pricing Policy

2012

17

4,840

41

42

2011

19

2,702

63

41

2012

5211

20

205

1,631

670

17

4,633

35

25

2011

704

236

568

137

19

726

35

24

Cost plus certain margin
Cost plus certain margin
Contract price

Contract price

2.8 percent per annum
(2011: 5.0 percent per

annum}

Cost plus certain margin

Contrast price

Market price / contract price
Contract price
Contract price

Contract price
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The balances of the accounts between the Company and its subsidiaries and those
related companies as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

2012 2011 2012 2011

Trade and other receivables- related parties (Note 9)
Subsidiaries - - 1,364,109 281,647
Related companies (common shareholders and directors) 909,152 875,210 894,714 261,435
Total trade and other receivables - related parties 809,152 875,210 2,258,823 542,982
Short-term loans to related parties :
Subsidiaries ‘ - - 40,244 25427
Total short-term loans to related parties - - 40,244 25427
Trade and other payables - related parties (Note 19)
Subsidiaries - - 338,560 321,663
Related companies (common shareholders and directors) 47,273 42,584 35,412 31,730

42,584 373,972 353,393

Total frade and other payables - related parties 47.273

Loans to related parties

_As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the balances of loans between the Company and

its subsidiaries and the movement are as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

Balance as at Balance as at
31 December Increase Unrealise loss on 31 December
Loans to related parties Related by 2011 during the year exchange rate 2012
Alpha Maritime Co., Ltd. Subsidiary 20,000 15,000 - 35,000
Kemaman Oil Corporation Sdn Bhd.  Subsidiary 5,427 - {183) 5,244
Total 25,427 15,000 (183} 40,244
ONIp_s

L
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During 2011, Surat Bitumen Co., Ltd. (Surat Bitumen) declared the payment of
dividend of Baht 182 million. When making dividend payment, Surat Bitumen offset the
dividend against the amount due between Surat Bitumen and Thai Bitumen Co., Ltd.
(Thai Bitumen), and Thai Bitumen borrowed the Company for the same amount. In
addition, the Company transferred a Baht 2,295 million short-term loan from a bank of
the Company to Thai Bitumen, by offsetting with the amount due from Thai Bitumen.

During 2012, Surat Bitumen returned share capital to the Company amounting to Baht
127 million by returning cash of Baht 1 million. For the remaining amount, Surat Bitumen
entered into a memorandum to transfer the amount due between Surat Bitumen and
Thai Bitumen to the Company, and such amount was offset with the amount due to Thai

Bitumen.

Directors and management's benefits

During 2012 and 2011, the Company and its subsidiaries had employee benefit

expenses of their directors and management as below.

(Unit; Million Baht)
Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

2012 2011 2012 2011
Short-term employee benefits 7 104 90 89 75
Post-employment benefits 4 4 4 4
Share-based payment transactions (Note 25) 4 2 3 2
Total 112 96 96 81

Guarantee obligations with related parties

The Company and its subsidiaries have outstanding guarantee obligations with its

related parties, as described in Note 21 to the financial statements.

21
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12.

Assets held for sales - Vessel

The net book value of the vessel held for sales as at 31 December 2012 is presented
below.

{Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated

financial statements

Cost 152,753
Less Accumulated depreciation (102,529)
Less Impairment loss (4,800)
Net book value 45,424

A reconciliation of the net book value of vessel held for sales for 2012 is presented

below.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated

financial statements

Net book value at beginning of year -

Reclassified from property, plant and equipment to assets

held for sales (Note 16) 50,224
Impairment loss recorded during the year (4,800)
Net book value at end of year 45,424

The vessel held for sales is an asset of Delta Shipping Company Limited. In
December 2012, this subsidiary entered into a contract to sell the vessel, together with
tools and instruments on the vessel, to an overseas company for approximately USD
1.5 million. As a result, the subsidiary reclassified these assets from property, plant
and equipment to vessel held for sale and recorded impairment loss on the assets of

approximately Baht 4.8 million as an expense in profit or loss for 2012.

In January 2013, the subsidiary received payment and transferred the vessel to the

buyer.
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Warrants to purchase new ordinary shares of the Company issued to the subsidiaries’
employees

During 2012 and 2011, the Company recorded cost of share-based payment
transactions, under warrants to purchase new ordinary shares of the Company issued
to the subsidiaries’ employees (Note 25) amounted to Baht 2.4 million and Baht 1.4

million, respectively, as a cost of investments in subsidiaries.

Surat Bitumen Company Limited {(Surat Bitumen)

On 13 December 2010, the Board of Directors approved the entire business transfer
of Surat Bitumen Company Limited to Thai Bitumen Company Limited, effective on
1 April 2011. Surat Bitumen filed for deregistration with the Ministry of Commerce on
15 December 2011. During 2012, the liquidator of Surat Bitumen returned share
capital to the shareholders and completed the liquidation process on 3 September
2012. The Company received the return of share capital amounting to Baht 127 million
(Note 10) and recorded the cash receipt net of investment in Surat Bitumen, as

“Income from liquidation of subsidiary” in profit or loss of the current year.

Investment in Thai Bitumen Company Limited (Thai Bitumen)

On 27 August 2012 extraordinary shareholders’ meeting No. 3/2012 of Thai Bitumen
passed a resolution to approve the reduction of its registered and paid up share
capital by Baht 800 million, through the retirement of 8 million shares of Baht 100
each. After the share reduction process, Thai Bitumen's registered and paid-up
capital will consist of 15 million shares of Baht 100 each, totaling Baht 1,500 million.
Thai Bitumen completed the share reduction process and registered changed share
capital with the Ministry of Commerce on 27 September 2012 and also returned the

reduction of capital to the Company on 28 September 2012.

Kemaman Qi Corporation Sdn Bhd (KOC) and Kemaman Bitumen Company Sdn Bhd
KBC

Under the previous Shareholders Agreement, KOC was a joinily controlied entity
between the Company and a subsidiary (Thai Bitumen Company Limited: Thai
Bitumen) and a co-venturer which is a publicly listed company in Malaysia (Seloga
Holdings Berhad: SHB). The purpose of the joint venture was to conduct a business

relating to the manufacturing and distribution of asphalt products.
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During March 2007, Thai Bitumen received 31.35 million ordinary shares of 1 ringgit
per share from the conversion of non-redeemable convertible preference shares
(NRCPS-A) of KOC. As a result of such conversion, the percentage holding of the
Company and Thai Bitumen in KOC changed from 50 percent to 97 percent. However,
the change in holding percentage is temporary since SHB was unable to increase its
investment in KOC and according to the Call Option Agreement, during the option
period, the Company and Thai Bitumen and SHB still have 50:50 interests in the
equity and control in KOC, in accordance with the Shareholders Agreement.

During January 2008, there were the following changes in the shareholding structure
of KOC, in accordance with the Call Option Agreement and a newly issued agreement
(Settlement Agreement).

1. In January 2007, the Company and Thai Bitumen entered into a Call Option
Agreement with SHB, granting an option to SHB to purchase 31.35 million
redeemable convertible preference shares of KOC at 1 ringgit per share (24.7
million shares held by Multi Strategies Sdn Bhd: MSSB, a subsidiary of Thai
Bitumen and 6.65 million shares held by Thai Bitumen) within 10 January 2008.
At the due date of the option, SHB offered a related company, Aras Jalinan Sdn
Bhd (Aras), the opportunity to exercise the option instead, as stipulated in the
Settlement Agreement dated 11 January 2008. In accordance with the Settlement
Agreement, Thai Bitumen has converted the 6.65 million preference shares to
ordinary shares and sold the ordinary shares at cost plus interest to Aras. In
addition, on 11 January 2008, Thai Bitumen also had MSSB convert its 24.7

million preference shares to ordinary shares and transferred MSSB to Aras.

2. Under the Call Option Agreement, if SHB did not exercise the option to purchase
such preference shares, Thai Bitumen and MSSB had the option to purchase all
of the ordinary shares held by SHB in KOC. Therefore, during January 2008, Thai
Bitumen purchased all 950,001 ordinary shares of KOC held by SHB at 1 ringgit
per share, for a total of 950,001 ringgit, plus interest as stipulated in the Call
Option Agreement. Under the Call Option Agreement, this is regarded as a
cancellation of the joint venture in KOC with SHB. However, the ordinary shares
purchased by Thai Bitumen are to be sold to Aras in accordance with the

Settlement Agreement.

Thai Bitumen requested a conversion of 31.35 million redeemable convertible
preference shares of KOC (RCPS-B) at 1 ringgit per share. The preference
shares were converted to ordinary shares of KOC in January 2008.
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4. As discussed in No. 1 above, on 11 January 2008, the Company, Thai Bitumen
and Aras entered into Settlement Agreement whereby Aras increased its interest

in

KOC, such that within 31 March 2008 the proportionate shareholdings of the

Company and Thai Bitumen, and Aras in KOC would be 50:50. Under the
agreement, Aras had to comply with the following conditions:

1)

2)

3)

4)

3)

increase its interest in the capital of KOC by 19 million ringgit (19 million
shares) on 11 January 2008;

increase its interest in the capital of KOC by 5 million ringgit (5§ million
shares) by 28 February 2008;

increase its interest in the capital of KOC by 7.35 million ringgit (7.35 million
shares) by 31 March 2008;

acquire from Thai Bitumen 6.65 million ringgit of ordinary shares of KOC
(6.65 million shares) and pay interest at 1.5% per annum (from 7 February
2007 until 11 January 2008}, by 31 March 2008;

acquire from Thai Bitumen 950,001 ringgit of ordinary shares of KOC
(950,001 shares) and pay interest at 15% per annum (from 11 January 2008
until the date of transfer of the shares to Aras), by 31 March 2008.

The Settlement Agreement stipulates that throughout the period of the agreement (11
January 2008 to 31 March 2008) the Company and Thai Bitumen, and Aras will each
have 50 percent equity interests in KOC and also equal control. In addition, the

Settlement Agreement stipulated that the Articles of Association of KOC and KBC are

o be a

mended so that management and decisions by the Board of Directors and the

shareholders can be made by a simple shareholding majority.

However, only parts of the above obligations have been fulfilled by Aras, as follow:

1)

2)

54,5

Aras paid 19 million ringgit for new ordinary shares of KOC on 11 January
2008, which was within the deadline.

Aras paid 5 million ringgit to KOC on 3 March 2008, which was after the
deadline. The Company considers this to be a breach of agreement and has
not allowed KOC to issue new share certificates to Aras.

(KOC recorded the cash received as a liability in its statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2010.)

Aras paid 7.35 million ringgit for new ordinary shares of KOC on 31 March
2008, which was within the deadline.

Aras did not purchase the shares from Thai Bitumen in accordance with the

agreement.

| 2y NG, —
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As Aras breached its contractual commitments as described in 2), 4) and 5), the
Company and Thai Bitumen called an extraordinary general meeting of KOG to
propose 4 new directors. However, Aras filed a petition with the courts in Malaysia,
requesting the meeting be cancelled. The High Court of Malaya and the Appeals Court
subsequently ruled on 7 April 2008 and 23 April 2008, respectively, that the courts did
not have jurisdiction to hear this case because the dispute was between a Malaysian
and a foreign investor. However, on 25 April 2008, Aras filed an Oppression Petition
with the High Court of Malaya. The petition was accepted by the court on 6 May 2008.

On 6 June 2008, the High Court of Malaya cancelled the demission to convent the
extraordinary general meeting of KOC. The Company and Thai Bitumen therefore heid
the extraordinary general meeting of KOC on 6 June 2008, and such meeting passed
a resolution to appoint 4 additional directors proposed by the Company and Thai
Bitumen. However, in June 2008, Aras filed .an appeal against the High Court
decision. '

As a result of the appointment of the 4 additional directors by the meeting the number
of directors on-the side of the Company and Thai Bitumen exceeds the number on
Aras's side, and the Company therefore controls KOC through those directors as from
B June 2008. The Company applied a 50 percent interest in recognising share of loss
from investment in KOC in the consolidated financial statements until 6 June 2008,
and subsequent to that date, the Company regarded KOC as a subsidiary.

Currently, the Appeal Court in Malaysia is during the consideration of the petition filed
by Aras Jalinan Sdn Bhd (Aras) regarding the convention of the extraordinary general
meeting of KOC. The management of the Company and Thai Bitumen believe that the
outcome of the Appeal Court, of which the result has yet been reached, will not affect
the value of the investments and the equity interests of the Company and Thai
Bitumen in KOC and KBC. .

fn May 2011, the International Chamber of Commerce Arbitral Tribunal concluded the
final award of the arbitration proceeding relating to the dispute between the Company
and Thai Bitumen, and Aras, which the Company and Thai Bitumen brought to
arbitration. Except for an order to accept the share acquisition payment amounting to
MYR 5 million which was made by Aras to KOC on 3 March 2008, the Arbitral Tribunal
dismissed all other claims of Aras, including equal management participation and
control in KOC by Aras. KOC registered additional capital amounting to MYR & million
belonging to Aras in July 2011. As a result, the shareholdings of the Company and its
subsidiaries in KOC and KBC decreased by 2.14 percent and 0.96 percent,

) ) respectively, to 63.12 percent and 82.07 percent, respectively. In 2011, the Campany
' recorded the change in the subsidiaries’ interest in the consclidated shareholders’

equity.
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In October 2012, Thai Bitumen and Tan Sri Halim Saad (TSH) settled out of court
whereby TSH agreed to transfer one share in Titan Field Sdn Bhd (Titan Field) (the
sole shareholder of Special Qils & Emulsion Sdn Bhd (SOE), which holds 1.4 percent
of shares in KBC) with a value of 1 ringgit, or equivalent to 50 percent of shareholding
in Titan Field, to Thai Bitumen. TSH transferred the share to Thai Bitumen on 30
October 2012. As a result of the share transfer, the Company and Thai Bitumen'’s
shareholding in KBC increased by 0.7 percent, from 82.07 percent to 82.77 percent.
However, the Company and Thai Bitumen did not recognise such change, as the

Company and Thai Bitumen do not have any conirol nor influence in Titan Field.

As at 31 December 2012, the value of the Company's investment costs in KOC and
KBC accounted for under the cost method in the separate financial statements were
higher than the Company’s aftributable equity interest in these subsidiaries. The
Company believes that the recoverable benefits from these investments will exceed

their costs. Therefore no allowance for impairment is made in the accounts.
14. Investment in associate

14.1 Details of associate:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statemenis

Shareholding Carrying amounts based
Company's name percentage Cost on equity method
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

(%) (%)
Colasie Co., Ltd. 40 40 18,404 18,404 60,649 41,640
(Registered under the taw of France)
(Holding company)

18,404 18,404 60,649 41,640

Total investment in associaie

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

Sharehelding Carrying amounts
Company's name percentage Cost based on cost method
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
(%) (%)
e ~“Colasie Co., Ltd. 40 40 18,404 18,404 18,404 18,404
18,404 18,404 18,404 18,404

 Total investment in associate .

FEO
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14.2 Share of profit and dividend received

During the years, the Company has recognised its share of profit from investment in

associate in the consolidated financial statements and dividend income in the separate

finan_cia! statements as follows:

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

Share of profit from nvestment in

Dividend received

Company's name

associate during the year

during the year by the Company

2012 2011 2012 2011
Colasie Co., Lid. 35,323 33,052 16,789 18,921
Total 35,323 33,952 16,789 18,921

14.3 Summarised financial information of associate

Financial information of the associate is summarised below.

Paid-up capital

Total assets

Total liabilities

Total revenues

{Unit: Million Eura)

as at as at as at for the year ended Profit for the year
Company's name 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December ended 31 December
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Colasie Co., Ltd. 1.04 1.04 261 3.29 0.01 0.02 2.28 2.09 2.20 207
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16. Investment properties

The net book value of investment properties as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 are

presented below.

As at 31 December 2012:
Cost
Less Accumulated depreciation

Less Allowance for diminution in value

Net book value

As at 31 December 2011:

Cost

Less Accumulated depreciation

Less Allowance for diminution in value

Net book value

As at 31 December 2012:
Cost
Less Accumulated depreciation

Less Allowance for diminution in value

Net book value

As at 31 December 2011:
Cost
Less Accumulated depreciation

Less Allowance for diminution in value

v

Net book value

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated financial statements

Land, buildings

and equipment Land awaiting

awaiting sales sales Total
268,377 383,608 651,985
(138,692) - (138,692)
(95,885) (217,975) (313,860)
33,800 165,633 199,433
268,377 383,608 651,985
(138,692) - (138,692)
(95,885) (213,208) (309,093)
33,800 170,400 204,200

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Separate financial statements

Land, buildings

and equipment

awaiting sales  Land for rent Total
268,377 76,960 345,337
(138,692) (9,562) (148,254)
(95,885) - (95,885)
33,800 67,398 101,198
268,377 76,960 345,337
(138,692) (9,015) (147,707)
(95,885) - (95,885)
33,800 67,945 101,745
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A reconciliation of the net book value of investment properties for 2012 and 2011 is

presented below.

Consolidated
financial statements

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Separate

financial statements

2012 2011 2012 2011
Net book value at beginning of year 204,200 273,450 101,745 68,491
Reclassified from property, plant and equipment
to investment properties (Note 16) - 129,685 - 129,685
Depreciation charged during the year , - - (547) (546)
Impairment loss recorded during the year (4,767} (198,935) - (95,885)
Net book value at end of year 199,433 204,200 101,198 101,745

The fair value of the investment properties as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 are
stated below: '

(Unit; Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2012 2011 2012 2011

Land for rent - 141,000 141,000

Land, buildings and equipment awaiting sales 33,800 33,800 33,800 33,800

165,633 170,400 - -

Land awaiting sales

The land, buildings and equipment awaiting sales are assets of the Petchburi Plant of
the Company, which the Company decided to cease the operations in 2011 and for
which it is seeking a buyer. In November 2011, the Company arranged for an
independent professional valuer to reappraise the value of the assets using the Sales
Comparison Approach, with the valuer appraising the assets at Baht 33.8 million. As a
result of the appraisal, the Company recorded impairment loss of the assetfs
amounting to Baht 95.8 million in the profit or loss for 2011.

The land awaiting sales is an asset of Thai Bitumen Company Limited for the asphalt
refinery plant project, which the subsidiary terminated in 1999 and for which it is
seeking a buyer. In November 2011, the subsidiary arranged for an independent
professional valuer to reappraise the value of the land using the Sales Comparison
Approach, with the valuer appraising the assets at Baht 170.4 million. As a resuit of
the appraisal, the subsidiary recorded impairment loss of the assets amounting to
Baht 103.1 million as an expense in profit or loss for 2011. In September 2012, the
subsidiary received a letter from Land Office relating to investigation of revocation of
some title deeds that had been issued illegally. The case currently has not been

‘i.goncluded. However, the subsidiary recorded impairment loss on the land of
i Fapproximately Baht 4.8 million as an expense in profit or loss for 2012.
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During the year 2012, an overseas subsidiary assessed machinery, tools and
equipment and found that some of machinery, tocls and equipment were not
appropriate for its current operations and needed replacement. The subsidiary
therefore recorded impairment loss of machinery, tools and equipment amounting to
USD 0.7 million as expense in profit or loss of 2012,

During the year 2012, borrowing costs totaling approximately Baht 16 million were
capitalised as cost of the vessel (2011: Baht 6 million). The weighted average rate
used to determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation was 5%
(2011: 4%).

As at 31 December 2012, certain building and equipment items had been fuily
depreciated but were still in use. The original cost of those assets amounted to
approximately Baht 1,436 million (2011: Baht 1,290 million) (The Company Only: Baht
898 million, 2011: Baht 896 million).

17. Leasehold rights

The Company and subsidiaries entered into agreements to lease buildings and land.

The lease agreements can be summarised below.

Country the Lease Prepaid lease
leased assef . Lease agreement  amount at inception
Leasee located in period ending year of the lease
(year)
1. The Company China 30 2031 1.4 million renminbi
2. A subsidiary in China China 30 2029 5.7 million renminbi
3. A subsidiary.in China China 50 2050 6.9 million renminbi
4. Asubsidiary in China China 45 2055 2.5 million renminbi
5. A subsidiary in Malaysia Malaysia 50 2065 198.8 million ringgit

The book value of the leasehold rights as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 can be

summarised below.

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
u Z’) r G\E T financial statements financial statements
P 2012 2011 2012 2011
; i Cost 254,299 254,299 6,837 6,837
’ Less Accumulated amortisation {39,122) (33,692) (2,735) (2,507)
Transtation adjustment (7,308) (432) - -
Net book value 207,872 220,175 4,102 4,330
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18.

A reconciliation of the net book value of leasehold rights for the years 2012 and 2011
is presented below.

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2012 2011 2012 2011
Net book value at beginning of year 220,175 212,590 4,330 4,558
Amortisation {5,697) {5,438) {228) (228)
Translation adjustments (6,606) 13,023 - -
Net book value at end of year 207,872 220,175 4,102 4,330

Short-term loans from financial institutions

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2012 2011 2012 2011
Trust receipts 8,158,510 3,697,157 8,168,510 2,360,331
Loans in renminbi 29,498 130,853 - -
Loans in US Dollars . 48,825 56,799 - -
Total 8,236,833 3,784,809 8,158,510 2,360,331

As at 31 December 2012, the Company and its local subsidiaries have short-term
loans from local banks, which carry interest at the rates ranging from 0.9 fo 1.2
percent per annum (2011: 1.2 to 2.0 percent per annum).

In ‘addition, overseas subsidiaries have short-term loans from overseas financial
institutions, which carry interest at the rates ranging from 5.2 to 7.9 percent per annum
(2011: 2.4 to 7.9 percent per annum),
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19.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables - related parties {Note 10)

Trade payables - unrelated parties

Amounts due to related parties (Note 10)

Accounts payable from price hedging
contracts

Other payables for purchése of
machineries

Accrued expenses

Other payables

Total trade and other payables

Consolidated

financial statements

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate

financial statements

012 2011 2012 2011
11,165 1,251 339,036 317,874
1,894,277 3,008,871 1,748,631 2,493,787
36,108 41,333 34,936 35,5619
- 114,537 - 39,380
15,080 3,318 - -
191,548 154,640 73,849 70,284
54,659 71,959 15,665 11,672
2,202,837 3,485,909 2,212,017 2,968,516
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Loan No. (3) of the Company: In May 2012, the Company amended long-term loan
agreement from a local bank to change the interest rate of long-term loan amounting
to Baht 1,500 million from interest rate with referenced to MLR as specified in the long-
term loan agreement to interest rate with referenced to THBFIX. In addition, in
September 2012, the Company repaid such long-term loan amounted to Baht 720
million before the repayment schedute specified in its loan agreement.

Loan No. (7) of Tasco Shipping Company Limited: In July 2012, a subsidiary amended
long-term loan agreement from a local bank to change currency from Japanese Yen to
United States Dollar and the interest rate of long-term loan from interest rate with
referenced to Japanese Yen LIBOR as specified in the long-term loan agreement to
interest rate with referenced to USD LIBOR.

Loan covenants

The Company’s loan agreements contain certain restrictive covenants pertaining to,
among others things, the maintenance of financial ratios, the prohibition from creating
lien over assets, the loan to related parties, the maintenance of frade accounts
receivable and inventory balance, the maintenance of shareholders and the limitation
on creation of additional long-term debt. The loan agreements of subsidiaries contain
certain restrictive covenants pertaining to, among other things, the maintenance of
financial ratios, the prohibition from creating lien over assets, restriction on dividend

payment and the maintenance of shareholding.

Interest rate swap agreements

In May 2009, the Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement to swap a
floating interest rate on a long-term loan from a local bank to a fixed rate interest at
4.365 percent per annum. As at 31 December 2012, the notional amount of Baht 720
million (2011: Baht 960 million) was outstanding. The notional amount reduces on a
quarterly basis in accordance with the long-term loan repayment schedule of the
Company in (2), starting from May 2009 and matures in November 2015.

In May 2012, the Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement to swap a
floating interest rate on a long-term loan from a local bank to a fixed interest rate at
5.21 percent per annum. As at 31 December 2012, the notional amount of Baht 701
million was outstanding, and this will reduce every quarter in accordance with the
related long-term loan repayment schedule of the Company in (3), starting from June

2012 and ending when the loan mature in March 2018.
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21.

22.

Credit facilities

The credit facilities of the Company and its subsidiaries granted by financial

institutions are secured by the following collaterals:

a) The guarantees by the Company, its subsidiaries and a shareholder of a

subsidiary.

b} The pledges/mortgages by the assets of subsidiaries of which the net book value
as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 of the assets are summarised below.

(Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

2012 2011
Deposits with financial institutions with restrictions - 66
Leasehold rights - net 151 187
Property, plant and equipment - net 2,880 2,008
Computer software - net 1 5

c) The prohibition from creating lien over assets of the Company and its subsidiaries.

d) Financial support letters provided by the Company and its subsidiaries to banks.

&) The Company allows its subsidiaries to use its facilities obtained from banks, with

the Company responsible to the banks for the amounts drawn down by the

subsidiaries.

Provision for long-term employee benefits

Provision for long-term employee benefits, which is compensations cn employees’

retirement, was as follows:

Consolidated

financial statements

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Separate

financial statements

2012 2011 2012 2011

Balance at beginning of year 65,129 58,556 52,778 47,759
Defined benefit plans:
Current service cost 7,641 7,697 6,023 6,079
Interest cost 2,324 2,117 1,889 1,729
Benefits paid during the year (4,234) (2,887) (2,580) (2,508)
Long service awards; {1,629 (354) (1,288) (283)
Balance at end of year 69,231 65,129 56,822 52,778
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Long-term employee benefit expenses included in the profit or loss was as follows:

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

2012 2011 2012 2011
Current service cost 7.857 7,927 6,175 6,241
Interest cost 2,412 2,209 1,950 1,794
Total expense recognised in profif or loss 10,269 10,136 8,125 8,035
Line items under which such expenses are included in profit or loss
Cost of sales . 1,232 1,420 628 1,075
Selling and administrative expenses 9,037 8,716 7,497 6,960

Principal actuarial assumptions at the valuation date were as follows:

Consolidated/Separate

financial statements

2012 2011
(% per annum} (% per annum)
Discount rate 3.9 3.9
Future salary increase rate (depending on age of employee) 3.0-80 3.0-8.0
Staff turnover rate (depending on age of employee) 0.0-14.0 0.0-14.0

23. Share capital

The Annual General Meeting of the shareholders held on 27 April 2012 approved the
following resolutions.

Decrease of share capital

Decrease the Company’s registered capital by Baht 1,587,000 from Baht 1,690,024,290
(169,002,429 ordinary shares of Baht 10 each) to Baht 1,688,437,290 (168,843,729
ordinary shares of Baht 10 each), by decreasing the ordinary shares reserved for the
exercise of ESOP-W1 of 158,700 shares at the par value of Baht 10 each.

The Company registered the capital decrease on 15 May 2012.

Increase of share capital

1) Increase the Company's registered capital by Baht 12,000,000 from Baht
1,688,437,290 (168,843,729 ordinary shares of Baht 10 each) to Baht 1,700,437,290
(170,043,729 ordinary shares of Baht 10 each), through the issue of 1,200,000
new ordinary shares of Baht 10 each.

2) Allocate and reserve the 1,200,000 new ordinary shares to support the exercise of
the ESOP-W2 warrants (Note 25).

The Company registered the capital increase on 16 May 2012.
7N N 47
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24,

25.

.- .Number of warrants unsubscribed

Warrants to purchase new ordinary shares of the Company issued to the
Company’s shareholders

The Annual General Meeting of the shareholders held on 5 April 2011 approved the
issuance of the warrants to purchase new ordinary shares of the Company (TASCO-W3)
without charge to the Company’s shareholders, at a rate of 10 existing ordinary shares
for 1 TASCO-W3 warrant. Each TASCO-W3 can be exercised to purchase 1 new
ordinary share at the following exercise prices:

Exercise month (from date of issuance) Exercise price (Baht per share)

Months 1o 12 62.19
Months 13 to 18 83.74
Months 19 to 24 65.30
Months 25 to 30 66.85
Months 31 to 36 68.41

The exercise prices are subject to change according to the conditions of any rights
adjustment.

The holders of TASCO-W3 are able to exercise their rights to purchase the
Company’s ordinary shares from the last business day of the month in which such
warrants are issued (18 April 2011). TASCO-W3 warrants have a term of 3 years.

The Stock Exchange of Thailand approved the listing of TASCO-W3 warrants, and the
warrants began trading on 6 May 2011.

Warrants to purchase new ordinary shares of the Company issued to the
executive directors and/or employees of the Company and subsidiaries (ESOP)

The 2012 and 2011 annual general meetings of the shareholders each approved the
issuance of 1,200,000 warrants to purchase new ordinary shares of the Company to
the executive directors and/or employees of the Company and its subsidiaries, without

charge. Details of these issues of ESOP warrants are summarised below.

ESOP-W1 ESOP-W2
Annual General Meeting of the
shareholders date 5 April 2011 27 April 2012
Exercise price 62.19 Baht per share 49.13 Baht per share
Issue date 18 April 2011 18 May 2012
Number of warrants subscribed 1,041,300 warrants 1,128,700 warrants
158,700 warrants 71,300 warrants
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26.

Each ESOP warrant can be exercised to purchase 1 new ordinary share at the
exercise prices specified above. However, these exercise prices are subject to change
in accordance with the conditions of any subsequent rights adjustment.

The holders of ESOP warrants can exercise their rights to purchase the Company’s

ordinary shares after the second year counting from the warrant issue date. Moreover,
they must still be executive directors and/or employees of the Company or its
subsidiaries on the date the warrants are exercised. The warrants have terms of 5

years.
The Company plans to cancel the unallocated ESOP-W2 specified above later.

The expenses recognised for employee services received during 2012 and 2011 of the
Company and its subsidiaries were totaled Baht 8 million and Baht 5 million,
respectively (Separate financial statements Baht 6 million and Baht 3 miltion,
respectively).

The fair value of option granted and the inputs of the model used are summarised

below.

ESOP-W1 ESOP-W2
Fair value of options granted Baht 12.1 per share  Baht 5.41 per share
Dividend yield 3.75% 2.58%
Expected stock volatility 40.0% 45.4%
Risk-free interest rate 2.82% 3.30%
Expected life of share options 2 years 2 years
Model used Black-Scholes Black-Scholes

The expected volatility of the share options is based on historical data of the

Company's stock price.
Statutory reserve

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company
is required to set aside to a statutory reserve at least 5 percent of its net income after
deducting accumulated deficit brought forward (if any), until the reserve reaches 10
percent of the registered capital. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend

distribution.
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28.

Compensation received from claims for damages

In 2011, the tribunal for arbitration between Thai Bitumen Company Limited (Thai
Bitumen) and an overseas company awarded in favor of Thai Bitumen over a sales
contract, where the counterparty had failed to make contracted delivery of goods to
Thai Bitumen. The award was approximately USD 20.2 million plus interest of
approximately USD 1.7 million. in late 2011, Thai Bitumen received the awarded
amount and recorded the cash receipt, which net of expenses relating to this matter

amounted to Baht 74 million, as income in profit or loss for 2011.

In 2012, Thai Bitumen received a sum of USD 1.6 million being the claim for
reimbursement expenses incurred from the same case. Thai Bitumen recorded the
cash receipt as income in the consolidated profit or loss for 2012 and the case has
been fully settled accordingly.

Expenses by nature

Significant expenses by nature are as follows:

(Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2012 2011 2012 2011
‘ (restated) {restated)
Salary and wages and other employee benefits 613 499 290 267
Depreciation and maintenance expenses 507 406 108 94
Costs related to production of goods and
services {excluding of staff cost and
depreciation) 35,070 19,941 34,289 57M
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29. Income tax

Income tax expenses for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 are made up

as follows:

Consolidated

financial statement

{Unit: Thousand Baht)
Separate

financial statement

2012 2011 2012 2011
(restated) (restated)
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge 77,989 86,251 40,012 54,364
Deferred tax:
Relating fo origination and reversal
of temporary differences {11,267) {18,558) (5,452) (23,488)
Utilisation of tax loss carried
forward during the year 50,061 177,138 - -
Effects of changes in the '
applicable tax rates 12,807 46,888 4,959 14,185
income tax expense reported in
. the statement of
comprehensive income 129,590 281,720 39,519 45,061

The amounts of income tax relating to each component of other comprehensive

income for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Consolidated

financial statement

{Unit: Thousand Baht)
Separate

financial statement

2012 2011 2012 2011
{restated) (restated)
Deferred tax relating to change in
fair value of interest rate swap
contract 371 2,129 371 2,129
Effects of changes in the
applicable tax rates 174 519 174 518
545 2,648 545 2,648
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Reconciliation between income tax expenses and the product of accounting profit

multiplied by the applicable tax rates for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011

are as follows:

Accounting profit before tax

Income tax at Thai corporate income
tax rate of 23% (201 1. 30%)

Adjustment in respect of current
income tax of previous year

Utilisation of previously unrecognised
tax losses

Effects of changes in the applicable
fax rates

Difference in tax rate in group companies

Effects of;

Non-deductible expenses

Additional expense deductions allowed

Exemption of income

Total

Income tax expenses reported in the

statement of comprehensive income

Consolidated

financial statement

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Separate

financial statement

2012 2011 2012 2011
(restated) (restated)
805,439 863,320 493,425 498,567
185,251 285,996 113,488 149,570
60 - - -
(60,065) - - -
12,807 46,888 4,959 14,185
{47,143) {34,957) (31.217) (49,951)
30,174 25,112 3,904 8,405
{616) (548) (616) (548)
{878) (773) {50,999) (76,602)
28,680 23,793 (47,711) (68,743)
129,590 291,720 39,519 45,061

The tax rate enacted at the end of the reporting period of the Company and its
subsidiaries is 0% to 25% (2011: 0% to 30%).

7S5 Oy, —+
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The components of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consclidated financial statements

As at 31 As at 31 Asat1
December 2012 December 2011 January 2011

(restated) (restated)
Deferred tax assets
Provision for long-term employee benefits 13,846 13,026 17,567
Allowance for doubtful accounts 25,559 22,441 26,194
Reduce cost of inventories to net
realisable value 521 537 745
Allowance for asset impairment 83018 .. . 71375 33,047
Fair value of price hedging contracts 2,642 6,439 43,091
Unused tax losses - 50,0861 242,436
Others 10,723 7.126 6,706 -
Total 116,209 ' 171,005 369,786
Deferred tax liabilities
Fair value of price hedging contracts (6472) {15,692) -
Difference depreciation for tax purpose (2,331) {1,368) (639)
Fair value of forward exchange contracts (1,560) (869) (9,957)
Total (9,363) (17,829) {10,596}
Deferred tax assets - net 106,846 153,176 359,190




{Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

As at 31 As at 31 Asat1
December 2012 December 2011 January 2011

{restated) (restated)
Deferred tax assets _
Provision for long-term employee benefits 11,364 10,556 14,328
Allowance for doubtful accounts 15,031 18,809 19,435
Reduce cost of invenfories to net
realisable value 417 350 502
Allowance for asset impairment 19,414 22,326 -
Fair value of price hedging contracts _ 2,642 6,438 ' -
Others 4,795 3,353 4,405
Total 53,563 61,833 38,670
Deferred tax liabilities '
Fair value of price hedging contracts (5,472) (15,592) -
Difference depreciation for tax purpose (1,984) {1,073) -
Fair value of forward exchange contracts (1,330) (340) (496)
Total (8,788) (17,005) (496)
Deferred tax assets - net . 44777 44,828 38,174

In October 2011, the cabinet passed a resolution to reduce the corporate income tax
rate from 30 percent to 23 percent in 2012, and then to 20 percent from 2013. In
addition, in order to comply with the resolution of the cabinet, in December 2011, the
decreases in tax rates for 2012 - 2014 were enacted through a royal decree. The
Company reflected the changes in tax rates in its deferred tax calculation, as
presented above.

As at 31 December 2012 the two subsidiaries have deductible temporary differences
and unused tax losses totaling Baht USD 80 million and 5 million ringgit (2011: USD
85 million and 4 million ringgit), on which deferred tax assets have not been
recognised as these subsidiaries believe that future taxable profits may not be

sufficient to allow utilisation of the temporary differences and unused tax losses.
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30, Promotional privileges

The Company and its subsidiaries were granted investment promotional privileges by
the Board of Investment. Important tax privileges granted to the companies are
summarised below.

Exemption from 50% reduction of

corporate income tax corporate income tax

for 8 years ratefor 5 years
commencing from commencing from

Tipco Asphait Public Company Limited

Manufacture of asphalt ’ 13 August 1998 | 14 August 2006

1 December 2000 2 December 2008

Thai Bitumen Company Limited

{Transferred from Surat Bitumen Company Limited)

Manufacture of asphalt 24 August 1998 25 August 2006
Raycol Asphalt Company Limited

Manufacture of asphalt 2 May 2001 3 May 2009
Bitumen Marine Company Limited

Marine transportation 24 June 2003* : -

9 February 2006* -
Tasco Shipping Company Limited
Marine transportation 24 May 2011* -
19 December 2012* -
Alpha Maritime Company Lmited

Marine transporiation 28 June 2011* -

*Exemption of corporate income tax not exceeding of the stipulated amount.

In addition, Kemaman Bitumen Company Sdn Bhd received tax privilege in reduction

of corporate income tax in Malaysia from the stipulated investment amount.
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Tax privileges for maritime commerce

The Company and three subsidiaries, Delta Shipping Company Limited, Alpha
Maritime Company Limited and Bitumen Marine Company Limited, are entitled to
withholding income tax privileges under Revenue Department Instruction No. Por
110/2545 since they are international marine transportation business operators,
whereby income from vessel rental is subject to withholding tax at a rate of 1%.
Moreover, the Company and the subsidiaries are exempted from corporate income tax
on their income from international marine transportation under Announcement of the

Director-General of the Revenue Department No. 72.
Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company (excluding other comprehensive income) by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the vear.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company (excluding other comprehensive income)} by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year plus the
weighted average number of ordinary shares which would need to be issued fo
convert all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. The calculation
assumes that the conversion took place either at the beginning of the year or on the
date the potential ordinary shares were issued. However, there is no calculation of
diluted earnings per share since the exercise prices to purchase ordinary shares of the
Company are higher than the average market price of the Company’s shares for the

year.

 The following table sets forth the computation of basic earnings per share:

Consolidated Separate
Financial statements financial stalements
2012 2011 2012 2011
{restated) (restated)
Profit for the year (Thousand Baht) 642,274 577,858 453,906 453,508
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
{Thousand shares) 152,548 152,548 152,548 152,548

Earnings per share (Baht per share) 4.21 3.79 298 297
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33.

Segment information

The Company and its subsidiaries’ business operations involve three principal
segments: (1) manufacture and sale of asphalt and petroleum products (2) marine
transportation (3) investment and others. The business operations are carried on both
in Thailand and overseas. However, during the years ended 31 December 2012 and
2011, the Company and its subsidiaries did not have significant business transactions
and outstanding balances relating to the marine transportation and investment and
other business segments. Therefore financial information by segment has been
presented only by geographic area, as follow:

(Unit: Million Baht)

Elimination of inter-

Thailand Overseas segment revenues Consolidation
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
(restated) (restated) ({restated) ({restated}
Revenue from external customers 33,542 19,329 4,121 2,975 37,663 22,304
Inter segment revenues 4,057 2,296 1,118 510 (5,175) (2,806} -
Total revenue 37,599 21,625 5,239 3,485 (5175) (2,806) 37,663 22,304
Segment operating income 547 728 124 {135) (29) (15) 642 578
(Unit: Million Baht)
Elimination of inter-
Thailand Overseas segrment revenuas Consolidation
2012 2011, 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
(restated) (restated) {restated) (restated)
Property plant and equipment 2,025 1,776 2,477 2,472 - 4,502 4,248
Other assets ' 14,168 11,438
Total assets 18,670 15,686

Transfer prices between the segments are as set out in Note 10 to the financial

statements.
Provident fund

The Company, its subsidiaries and their employees have jointly established a
provident fund in accordance with the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. Both employees
and the Company and its subsidiaries contribute to the fund on a monthly basis. The
fund, which is managed by CIMB-Principal Asset Management Co., Ltd., will be paid
to employees upon termination in accordance with the fund rules. During 2012, the
Company and its subsidiaries contributed Baht 8 million (2011: Baht 8 million) to the

fund (Separate financial statements: Baht 7 million, 2011: Baht 6 million).
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35.

36.

36.1

36.2

Dividend

On 27 April 2012, the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders approved the
payment of a dividend for the year 2011 of Baht 1.25 per share, or a total of Baht
190,684,210 to the Company’s shareholders. Dividends were paid to the shareholders
on 16 May 2012.

Commitments and contingent liabilities
Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Company and its subsidiaries had
outstanding capital commitments relating to the purchase of land, machinery,

equipment, computer software and vessel, as follows:

Foreign currency  Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

2012 2011 2012 2011
(Million) (Million) (Million) (Million)
Baht 8 19 5 -
Ringgit 18 9 - -
Yen - 1,080 - -
US Dollar 12 - - ‘ -

Operating lease commitments

The Company and its subsidiaries have entered into several agreements in respect
of the lease of buildings, warehouses and motor vehicles, and other service

agreements.

Future minimum rental and service fees payable under these agreements were as

follow:
Separate
Consolidated financial statements financial statements
Million Baht Million ringgit Miilion Baht
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Payable within;
1 year 31 40 1 1 32 23
2 to 5 years 45 6 - 1 39 5

58




36.3 Long-term service commitments

Service agreements with Colas S.A. to receive management and marketing services
and advice on methods and systems of management and technical assistance in the
manufacture of Asphalt Emulsion and Modified Asphalt:

Counterparty  Adreement term Expiry date Fee
The Company 5 years 31 December 2017  Annual [ump sum administrative fee of

Euro 145,000 plus a technical assistance
fee equivalent to 0.75 percent of the

consolidated revenues of the Company

generated from the stipulated products

A subsidiary 5 years 30 September 2017 Annual fee of at least Baht 8 million

36.4 Crude oil purchase commitments

36.5

As af 31 December 2012, the Company had outstanding commitment in respect of

the purchase of crude oil approximately 0.8 million barrels (2011: 0.8 million barrels).
Bank guarantees

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, there were outstanding bank guarantees issued
by the banks on hehalf of the Company and its subsidiaries in respect of certain
performance bonds as required in the normal course of business which are
summarised below.

Foreign
currency Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2012 2011 2012 2011
(Million) {Million) {Mitlion) {Million)
Baht 3 3 2 3
Ringgit 5 2 - 1
Renminbi 5 5 5 5
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37.

37.1

Financial instruments

Financial risk management

The Company and its subsidiaries’ financial instruments, as defined under Thai
Accounting Standard No. 107 “Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentations”,
principally comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade
and other payables, liabilities under finance lease agreements and loans. The
financial risks associated with these financial instruments and how they are managed
are described below.

Credit risk

The Company and its subsidiaries are exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to
trade accounts receivable and loans. The Company and its subsidiaries manage the
risk by adopting appropriate credit control policies and procedures and therefore
does not expect to incur material financial losses. In addition, the Company and its
subsidiaries do not have high concentrations of credit risk since it has a large
customer base. The maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying

amounts of receivables and loans, as stated in statements of financial position.
Interest rate risk

The Company and its subsidiaries' exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to
its cash at banks, shori-term loans from banks, liabilities under finance lease
agreements and long-term borrowings. However, since most of the Company and its
subsidiaries’ financial assets and liabilities bear floating interest rates or fixed interest
rates which are close to the market rate, the interest rate risk is expected to be

minimal.

Significant financial assets and liabilities classified by type of interest rate are
summarised in the table below, with those financial assets and liabilities that carry
fixed interest rates further classified based on the maturity date, or the repricing date

if this occurs before the maturity date.




Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables

Financial liabliities

Short-term loans from financial institutions
Trade angd other payables

Liabilities under finance lease agreements

l.ong-term loans

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables

Deposits with financfal institutions with restrictions
Financial liabilities

Short-term loans from financial institutions

Trade and other payables

Liabitities under finance [ease agreements

Long-term ioans

{Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated financiat statements

As at 31 December 2012

Fixed interest rates Floating Non-
Within interest interest
1 year 1-5 years rate bearing Tetal Interest rate
(% pa)
- - 5@ 681 740 0.2-24
- - - 5,348 5,348 -
8,237 - - - 8,237 09-79
. . . 2,203 2,203 -
9 13 - - 22 2.7-759
4 1 2,956 7 2,968 22-46

{Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

As at 31 December 2011

Fixed interest rates Floating Non-
Within interest interest
1 year 1-5 years rate bearing Total interest rate
% p.a)
519 - 76 407 1002 02-33
- - - 3,688 3,688 -
- - 66 - 66 0.8-26 |
3,785 - - - 3,785 1.3-3.7
- - - 3,486 3,486 -
12 13 - - 25 1.0-83.0
4 4 3,639 7 3,654 1.2-45
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(Unit: Million Baht)

Separate financial statements

As at 31 December 2012

Fixed interest rates Floating Non-

Within interest interest

1 year 1-5 years rate bearing Total Interest rate

(% p.a)

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - 7 37 44 0.7-08
Trade and other receivables - - - 5,442 5,442 -
Short-term loans to related parties 40 - - - 40 2.8
Financial liabilities
Short-term loans from financial institutions 8,159 - - - 8,159 0.9-1.2
Trade and other payables - - - 2,212 2,212 -
Liabilities under finance lease agreements 5 10 - - 15 48-759
Long-term loans 4 1 1,421 - 1,426 3.7-46

(Unit: Million Baht)

Separate financial statements

As at 31 December 2011

Fixed interest rates Floating Non-

Within interest interest

1 year 1-5 years rate bearing Total Interest rate

(% p.a.)

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 340 - 42 49 431 0.5-3.1
Trade and cther receivables - - - 1,626 1,626 -
Short-terrn loans to related parties 20 - - 5 25 5.0
Financial liabilities
Short-term loans from financial institutions 2,360 - - - 2,360 18-20
Trade and other payables - - - 2,969 2,969 -
Liabilities under finance lease agreements 7 2] - - 13 4.8-63.0
Long-term loans 4 4 2,460 - 2,468 3.7-45

Foreign currency risk

The Company and its subsidiaries’ exposure to foreign currency risk arises mainly
from trading transactions and borrowings that are denominated in foreign currencies.
The Company and its subsidiaries seek to reduce risk by entering into forward

exchange contracts when it considers appropriate. Generally, the forward contracts

. mature within one year.




The balances of financial assets and liabilities of the Company and its subsidiaries
denominated in foreign currencies are summarised below,

Consolidated financial statements

Financial assets Financial liabilities Average exchange rate
Foreign currency as at 31 December as at 31 December as at 31 December
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
(Million) (Million) (Million}) (Million}  (Baht per 1 foreign currency unit)

US Dollar 87 57 306 128 30.6 31.7
Renminbi 1 1 - - 4.9 5.0
Yen - - 7 701 0.4 0.4
Ringgit 26 8 7 5 10.0 10.0

Separate financial statements

Financial assets Financial liabilities Average exchange rate
Foreign currency as at 31 December as at 31 December as at 31 December
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
{Million) (Million) (Million}) (Million}  (Baht per 1 foreign currency unit)

US Dollar 118 23 288 77 308 3.7
Renminbi 1 1 - - 4.9 5.0
HK Dollar 1 1 - - 4.0 4.1
Ringgit - - 1 1 10.0 10.0

The Company and its subsidiaries outstanding foreign exchange contracts which
maturity date within one year are summarised below.

As at 31 December 2012

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
Sold Bought Sold Bought Contractual exchange rate
Foreign currency amount amodint amount amount Sold Bought
(Million}) {Million) (Million} {(Million)
US Dollar 30.6 18.6 29.1 18.6 30.6-32.1 30.6-30.9
Baht per 1 Baht per 1
US Dollar US Dollar
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As at 31 December 2011

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
Sold Bought Sold Bought Contractual exchange rate
Foreign currency amount amount amount amount Sold Bought

(Milion) ~ (Million)  (Million)  (Million)

US Dollar 213 8.8 132 1.7 30.1-31.8 30.1-319
Baht per 1 Baht per 1
US Dollar US Dollar

Euro - 10.0 - 10.0 - 1.3 US Dollar
per 1 Euro

in addition, the Company and its subsidiaries are exposed to foreign exchange risk
on their investments in overseas subsidiaries and associate. These investments are
currently not hedged by derivative financial instruments.

Risk from fluctuation in raw materials and finished goods prices

The Company and its subsidiary are exposed to risk from fluctuations in the price of
raw materials and finished goods. To manage these risks, the Company and its
subsidiary have entered into price hedging contracts with banks to hedge the risk

from fluctuation in such prices.

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the outstanding price hedging contracts which
maturity date within one year are summarised below.

{Unit; Million Baht)
Consolidated/Separate

financial statement

2012 2011

Contracts presented as assets

Contracts to sell raw materials - 13
Contracts to sell finished goods 13 55
Four-ways collar options to purchase raw materiais 14 -
Total price hedging contracts presented as assets 27 68
Coniracts presented as liabilities

Contracts to purchase raw materials - 17
Contracts to sell raw materials - 1
Contracts to sell finished goods 13 10
Total price hedging contracts presented as liabilities 13 28




37.2 Fair vaiue of financial instruments

38.

39.

Since the majority of the Company and its subsidiaries’ financial instruments are short-
term in nature or bear floating interest rates, their fair value is not expected to be
materially different from the amounts presented in statement of financial position. For
derivatives, fair value is generally derived from quoted market prices, or based on

generally accepted pricing models when no market price is available.

A fair value is the amount for which an asset can be exchanged or a liability settled
between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The fair value is
determined by reference to the market price of the financial instrument or by using an
appropriate valuation technique, depending on the nature of the instrument.

Capital management

The primary objective of the capital management of the Company and its subsidiaries
is to ensure that they have an appropriate financial structure and preserves the ability

to continue their business as a going concern.

The Group manages its capital position with reference to its debt-to-equity ratio. As at
31 December 2012, the Group's debt-to-equity ratio was 2.70:1 (2011: 2.40:1) and the
Company's was 2.60:1 (2011 1.85:1).

Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s authorised

directors on 11 February 2013.
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